
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Our Ref: NC/AJD 

Contact: Nicola Calver 

Tel: 01246 217753 

Email: nicola.calver@ne-
derbyshire.gov.uk 

Date: Wednesday, 11 September 
2019 

 
To: Members of the Standards Committee 

 
Please attend a meeting of the Standards Committee to be held on Thursday, 19 
September 2019 at 2.00 pm in the Chamber 1, District Council Offices, 2013 Mill Lane, 
Wingerworth, Chesterfield, S42 6NG.  
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Joint Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 
 

Members of the Committee 
 

Conservative Group Labour Group Liberal Democrat Group 

 
Councillor Pat Antcliff 
Councillor William Armitage 
Councillor Carolyn Renwick 
Councillor Michael Roe 
Councillor Diana Ruff 
 

 
Councillor Pat Kerry 
Councillor Jacqueline Ridgway 
Councillor Kathy Rouse 
 

 
Councillor Ross Shipman 
 

 
For further information about this meeting please contact: Nicola Calver, 01246 217753 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of 
interests, in any item in the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the 
appropriate time. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 
3   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 4 - 8) 

 
 To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the Standards 

Committee held on 11 July 2019.  
 

4   Report of the Joint Head of Partnerships and Transformation  (Pages 9 - 18) 
 

 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 
 

5   To consider any other matter which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   
 

 Reports of the Joint Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 

a.   Review of the Council's Constitution  (Pages 19 - 30) 
 

b.   Questions and Motions to Council  (Pages 31 - 45) 
 

c.   Flintshire County Council - Update to the Code of Conduct  (Pages 46 - 49) 
 

d.   Complaints Update - (verbal update)   
 

e.   Work Programme  (Page 50) 
 

6   Urgent Items of Business   
 

 To consider any other matter which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

___________ 
 
 

 

Page 2



 

Agenda Item No 3  
STANDARDS COMMITTEE  

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 11 JULY 2019 

I N D E X 

 
 

Page No Minute No Heading 

 
1 

 
102 

 
Apologies for Absence 
 

 
1 

 
103 

 
Declaration of Interests 
 

 
1 

 
104 

 
Minutes of Last Meeting  
 

 
1 

 
105 

 
Role of the Standards Committee and Work 
Undertaken Todate 
 

 
2 

 
106 

 
Review of the Council’s Constitution  
 

 
3 

 
107 

 
Draft Standards Committee Annual Report  
 

 
3 

 
108 

 
Complaints Against Members   
 

 
4 

 
109 

 
Urgent Items of Business  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 1 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 11 JULY  2019  
 

Present: 
 

Councillor W Armitage …………….. Chair  
 

Councillor P Antcliff  
 “ P R Kerry  
 “ C Renwick  
 “ J Ridgway 
 
 

Councillor M Roe  
 “ K Rouse 
 “ R Shipman  

  

 
Also Present:- 
 
V Dawson - Solicitor – Team Manager (Contentious)  
N Calver - Governance Manager  
  
 
102  Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D Ruff.     

103 Declarations of Interest 

 
 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of interests, in 
any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time. 

 
 There were no interests declared at the meeting.   

 
104 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
 RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on   

11 March 2019 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
105 Role of Standards Committee and Work Undertaken To-date  
 

Members received a briefing from the Deputy Monitoring Officer and Governance 
Manager in relation to the role of the Standards Committee and the work that the 
Committee had undertaken during the previous municipal year.   
 
Circulated at the meeting was a full outline of the Terms of Reference for the 
Committee, including their functions as set out within the Constitution.  Detail and 
advice was offered on each area, however, specific training on areas such as RIPA 
and the Whistleblowing Policy would be given prior to considering those annual reports 
during the forthcoming municipal year.   
 
   

  

Page 4



STANDARDS COMMITTEE   11 JULY 2019  
 

 2 

In considering the Terms of Reference of the Committee it was highlighted that new 
Members may be unaware of their responsibilities in regard to gifts and hospitality and 
the Deputy Monitoring Officer undertook to provide a note of advice to all members of 
Council. 
 
The Governance Manager briefed the Committee on the recent review undertaken by 
the Parliamentary Committee on Standards in Public Life into Local Government 
Ethical Standards.   
 
Members noted that the previous Standards Committee were consulted, alongside all 
interested stakeholders, in regard to the Terms of Reference for the review and 
recommendations of the Parliamentary Committee were published in January 2019.  
The full report presented to Standards Committee in May 2019 made a number of 
recommendations, which included:-  
 

 The criminal offence for non registration and non declaration of disclosable 
pecuniary interests should be abolished.  
 

 Council should have the power to suspend Members for up to six months without 
allowances. 
 

 Independent Persons should be given a legal indemnity by Councils if they were 
to have a role in agreeing the suspension of Members.  
 

 Independent Persons should be appointed for a two year term, renewable once.  
  

 Statutory protection for Monitoring Officers should be standard to include any 
disciplinary action, not just dismissal.  
 

 Parish Clerks should hold a suitable qualification. 
 

 There should be greater recognition of the role of the Monitoring Officer in 
supporting Parishes and resources should be allocated accordingly.   

 
 Members gave consideration to support provided to Parish Councils and the 

Monitoring Officer and noted that the previous Standard Committee had requested that 
this item be brought back for a full discussion at a future meeting.   

 
 It was noted that a number of the findings of the report could not be actioned without 

changes in legislation, however, there were one or two recommendations that could be 
incorporated into the review of the Terms of Reference and these would be discussed 
at the following meeting.   

 
 

RESOLVED – That the role of the Standards Committee be noted and the Terms of 
Reference be revised for consideration at the next meeting.   
 

106 Review of the Council’s Constitution  
 
 Members gave consideration to the list of areas for review within the Council’s 

Constitution for consideration by the Standards Committee prior to submission as part 
of the annual review of the Constitution to Council for adoption.   

Page 5



STANDARDS COMMITTEE   11 JULY 2019  
 

 3 

 The Governance Manager explained that one of the primary functions of the 
Standards Committee was to undertake an annual review of the Council’s Constitution 
to ensure that it was up-to-date and in line with legislation and current circumstances.  
Members noted that the following areas had been identified for review:- 

 

 JCG Terms of Reference 

 Contract Procedure Rules – Contract Formalities  

 Standards Committee Terms of Reference  

 Review of Employee Code of Conduct  

 Employment Rules  

 JEAC Terms of Reference  

 Questions and Motions to Council (limitations)  

 Delegation Scheme (MO Delegations)  

 Minor wording changes or updating of job titles (housekeeping)  
 
 Members of the Standards Committee were satisfied that the list set out above was 

comprehensive and noted that additions and alterations could be made during the 
municipal year.   

 
 RESOLVED – That the list of areas of the Constitution to be reviewed in the 

forthcoming municipal year be agreed.     
 
107 Draft Standards Committee Annual Report  
 
 The Deputy Monitoring Officer presented the Standards Committee Annual Report 

2018/19 to the Committee drafted on behalf of the former Chair of the Standards 
Committee, Brian Ridgway.   

 
 The Annual Report outlined the work of the Standards Committee during the previous 

municipal year and covered the following areas.  Complaints received during 2018/19:- 
 

 Complaints received during 2018/19 

 Reports of the Independent Persons  

 Local Government Ombudsman Complaints 2017/18 

 Ethical Standards Training 

 Policy and Constitution Review Work 

 Guidance and reports considered by the Committee  

 Consultations and survey results relating to Standards  
 

The Deputy Monitoring Officer also took the opportunity to discuss in detail the areas 
of work to be undertaken by the Standards Committee on an annual basis and offered 
Members the opportunity to ask questions or request further details of training on 
different areas.   

 
 RESOLVED – That the Annual Report of the Standards Committee be agreed for 

submission to Council.   
 
108 Complaints Against Members 
 
 The Deputy Monitoring Officer advised that at the conclusion of the 2018/19 municipal 

year all complaints had reached resolution.  She further advised that since the 

Page 6



STANDARDS COMMITTEE   11 JULY 2019  
 

 4 

commencement of the 2019/20 municipal year two complaints had been received, 
however, they were in their infancy and there was no information to share with 
Members at this time.   

  
 RESOLVED – That the update on Member Complaints be noted.  
 
109 Urgent Business 
 
 Members were advised that there was no urgent business to be discussed in the 

public session at this meeting of the Standards Committee.  The Committee discussed 
the timing of future meetings and agreed, where possible, meetings would be held at 
2.00 pm on the dates specified in the meeting schedule.   

 
 
 

__________________ 
 
 
 
Standards Mins (0711) 2019/AJD  

Page 7



1 
 

Agenda Item No 4 
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Standards Committee  
 

19 September 2019 
 
 

Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter  

 
Report of the Joint Head of Partnerships & Transformation  

 
This report is public  

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

 To review the annual review letter of the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGO), Appendix 1 attached to this report. 

 
1 Report Details 
 
1.1 The Council received its Annual Review Letter from the Local Government & Social 

Care Ombudsman on the 24 July 2019.  It contains information on how many 
complaints and enquiries had been referred to the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman and how many complaints were upheld or referred back for local 
resolution. 

 
1.2 There were 3 complaints and enquiries received in total by the Local Government & 

Social Care Ombudsman see Appendix 2 attached to this report. 
 
1.3 There were 3 decisions made by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

see Appendix 3 attached. 
 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 A revision of the Joint Compliments, Comments and Complaints Policy and 

Procedure was agreed at the 1 August 2018 Cabinet Meeting. The outcome of the 
Annual Review demonstrates that the policy is effective and being applied 
consistently. 

 
2.2 Mandatory training continues to take place across the Council which provides a 

consistent approach in the way that all officers effectively deal with all Compliments, 
Comments and Complaints. 

 
2.3 A total of 220 formal complaints were received from the 1 April 2018 to the 31 March 

2019 which includes cross cutting complaints across various departments.  A total of 
18 of these complaints were escalated to the next stage of the complaints procedure 
by customers who were still dissatisfied with the response given by the Council which 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

is an Internal Review (Appeal).  Only 3 of these complaints were taken to the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 Not applicable for information only. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable for information only. 
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 The Council is at risk of reputational damage by recommendations or decisions by 

the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman, if complaints are not handled well. 
 
5.1.2 In cases of maladministration, financial penalties can be imposed by the Local 

Government & Social Care Ombudsman.  
 
5.1.3 In the case of complaints about Freedom of Information, Data Protection and 

Environmental Information requests, the information Commissioner’s Office can issue 
decision notices and impose significant fines. 

 
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 The policy allows compliance with the Local Government Act 1974 and guidance set 

out by the Local Government Ombudsman.  It is also in line with the requirements of 
the General Data Protection Regulation 2018, Freedom of Information Act 2000 and 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004. 

 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1 Not applicable 
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That Standards Committee receive the Annual Review letter of the Local Government 

& Social Care Ombudsman and notes the outcomes as detailed in the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



3 
 

7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or more 
District wards or which results in income or 
expenditure to the Council above the 
following thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 
 

Yes 
 

District Wards Affected 
 

N/A 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

Transforming our Organisation – 
Good Governance  

 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 
2 
 
3 

Letter from the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  
List of enquiries received by the Local Government & Social 
Care Ombudsman 
Decisions made by the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to 
a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section 
below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must 
provide copies of the background papers) 

 
N/A 
 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Matthew Broughton 
Joint Head of Partnerships and Transformation  
 

Ext: 7026 

 
 
AGIN 4 (STANDARDS 0919) 2019 – Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 
   

Page 10



 

 

 

 

24 July 2019 
 
By email 
 
Daniel Swaine 
Chief Executive 
North East Derbyshire District Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Swaine 
 
Annual Review letter 2019 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 31 

March 2019. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 

about your authority, the decisions we made, and your authority’s compliance with 

recommendations during the period. I hope this information will prove helpful in assessing 

your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  

Complaint statistics 

As ever, I would stress that the number of complaints, taken alone, is not necessarily a 

reliable indicator of an authority’s performance. The volume of complaints should be 

considered alongside the uphold rate (how often we found fault when we investigated a 

complaint), and alongside statistics that indicate your authority’s willingness to accept fault 

and put things right when they go wrong. We also provide a figure for the number of cases 

where your authority provided a satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached us, and 

new statistics about your authority’s compliance with recommendations we have made; both 

of which offer a more comprehensive and insightful view of your authority’s approach to 

complaint handling.  

The new statistics on compliance are the result of a series of changes we have made to how 

we make and monitor our recommendations to remedy the fault we find. Our 

recommendations are specific and often include a time-frame for completion, allowing us to 

follow up with authorities and seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. 

These changes mean we can provide these new statistics about your authority’s compliance 

with our recommendations.  

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold and may not 

necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 

Page 11



enquiries from people we signpost back to your authority, some of whom may never contact 

you. 

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 

website, alongside our annual review of local government complaints. For the first time, this 

includes data on authorities’ compliance with our recommendations. This collated data 

further aids the scrutiny of local services and we encourage you to share learning from the 

report, which highlights key cases we have investigated during the year. 

New interactive data map 

In recent years we have been taking steps to move away from a simplistic focus on 

complaint volumes and instead focus on the lessons learned and the wider improvements 

we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the many. Our 

ambition is outlined in our corporate strategy 2018-21 and commits us to publishing the 

outcomes of our investigations and the occasions our recommendations result in 

improvements for local services.   

The result of this work is the launch of an interactive map of council performance on our 

website later this month. Your Council’s Performance shows annual performance data for all 

councils in England, with links to our published decision statements, public interest reports, 

annual letters and information about service improvements that have been agreed by each 

council. It also highlights those instances where your authority offered a suitable remedy to 

resolve a complaint before the matter came to us, and your authority’s compliance with the 

recommendations we have made to remedy complaints. 

The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on your authority’s compliance with 

investigations. It is a useful snapshot of the service improvement recommendations your 

authority has agreed to. It also highlights the wider outcomes of our investigations to the 

public, advocacy and advice organisations, and others who have a role in holding local 

councils to account.   

I hope you, and colleagues, find the map a useful addition to the data we publish. We are 

the first UK public sector ombudsman scheme to provide compliance data in such a way and 

believe the launch of this innovative work will lead to improved scrutiny of councils as well as 

providing increased recognition to the improvements councils have agreed to make following 

our interventions. 

Complaint handling training 

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2018-19 we 

delivered 71 courses, training more than 900 people, including our first ‘open courses’ in 

Effective Complaint Handling for local authorities. Due to their popularity we are running six 

more open courses for local authorities in 2019-20, in York, Manchester, Coventry and 

London. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Finally, I am conscious of the resource pressures that many authorities are working within, 

and which are often the context for the problems that we investigate. In response to that 

situation we have published a significant piece of research this year looking at some of the 

Page 12

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/about-us/our-aims/our-mission-and-objectives
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


common issues we are finding as a result of change and budget constraints. Called, Under 

Pressure, this report provides a contribution to the debate about how local government can 

navigate the unprecedented changes affecting the sector. I commend this to you, along with 

our revised guidance on Good Administrative Practice. I hope that together these are a 

timely reminder of the value of getting the basics right at a time of great change.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice


Local Authority Report: North East Derbyshire District Council 

For the Period Ending: 31/03/2019  

 

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website  

 
Complaints and enquiries received  
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 3 

 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice 
Given 

Referred 
back for 

Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate (%) Total 

0 0 1 1 1 0 0 3 

Note: The uphold rate shows how often we found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a percentage of the total number of detailed investigations we completed. 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by authority  

Upheld cases where the authority had provided a satisfactory 
remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman 

% of upheld 
cases 

0 0 

Note: These are the cases in which we decided that, while the authority did get things wrong, it offered a 
satisfactory way to resolve it before the complaint came to us. 

P
age 14

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations  

Complaints where compliance 
with the recommended remedy 
was recorded during the year* 

Complaints where the 
authority complied with 

our recommendations on-
time  

 

Complaints where the authority 
complied with our 

recommendations late  
 

Complaints where the 
authority has not 
complied with our 
recommendations  

 

 
 
 

0 
0 0 0 Number 

0% - Compliance rate** 

Notes:  
* This is the number of complaints where we have recorded a response (or failure to respond) to our recommendation for a remedy during the reporting year. This includes complaints that may have been 
decided in the preceding year but where the data for compliance falls within the current reporting year. 
** The compliance rate is based on the number of complaints where the authority has provided evidence of their compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. This includes instances where an 
authority has accepted and implemented our recommendation but provided late evidence of that. 
 

 

P
age 15



 

 

  

 

 

NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Enquiries received by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman in the period April 2018 to March 2019 

 

Reference Authority Category Received 

18000929 North East Derbyshire District Council Corporate & Other Services 18 Apr 2018 

18007534 North East Derbyshire District Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & 
Regulation 

14 Aug 2018 

18019247 North East Derbyshire District Council Planning & Development 19 Mar 2019 

 

 

The above shows complaints received by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman but not necessarily upheld.  See 

APPENDIX 3 for the complaint showing upheld or not upheld by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 P
age 16



APPENDIX 3

NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Decisions made in period (April 2018 - March 2019)

Reference Authority Category Decided Decision Decision Reason

1

18000929 NEDDC Corporate & Other Services 18 May 2018 Other reason not to investigate Closed after initial enquiries

2
17018720 NEDDC Planning & Development 10 Jul 2018 no maladministration Not Upheld

3

18007534 NEDDC Environmental Services & 

Public Protection & 

Regulation

14 Aug 2018 Premature Decision - advice 

given

Referred back for local 

resolution

3 decisions were received from the Ombudsman for the period April 2018 - March 2019

Ombudsman Complaint 1 was closed after initial enquiry

Ombudsman Complaint 2 was not upheld by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman - no maladministration 

Ombudsman Complaint 3 was referred back for local resolution as the complainant had not gone through the Council's 

Corporate Complaints procedure - this was not upheld by the Ombudsman

P
age 17



1 
 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council 

 
Standards Committee 

 
19 February 2019 

 

Review of the Council’s Constitution  

 
Report of the Head of Corporate Governance and Solicitor to the Council & 

Monitoring Officer  
 

This report is public  
Purpose of the Report 
 

 To consider the list of areas for review within the Council’s Constitution for 
consideration by the Standards Committee prior to submission as part of the Annual 
Review of the Constitution to Council for adoption. 

 
1 Report Details 
 
1.1 The Constitution is the Council’s ‘rulebook’.  It sets out how the Council operates 

and how it makes decisions.  Council approved its latest version of the Constitution 
at the Annual Council meeting in May 2019.  

 
1.2  Standards Committee at its meeting on 19th September 2019 agreed the following 

areas for review: 
 

 JCG Terms of Reference 

 Contract Procedure Rules – Contract Formalities 

 Standards Committee Terms of Reference 

 Review of Employee Code of Conduct 

 Employment Rules 

 JEAC Terms of Reference 

 Questions and Motions to Council (limitations) 

 Delegation Scheme (MO Delegations) 

 Authorisation to spend from reserves by Cabinet 

 Minor wording changes or updating of job titles (housekeeping) 
 

1.3 Additional areas have also been identified: 

 Exempt Session Rules 

 Spending of Reserves by Cabinet 

 Motions Processes and Deadlines 

 Discharge of Executive Decisions 

 Terms of Reference for newly established Boards 

 Independent Persons Terms of Office 

 Scrutiny Arrangements 
  

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5a



2 
 

1.4 The following table sets out how these areas of review will be considered over the 
municipal year and where the matters need to be considered by other Committees 
for consultation, these have been identified.  

 
 

Area for Review Lead Officer Dates for Consideration  

Standards Committee 
Terms of Reference 

Governance Manager Standards Committee 
19th September 2019 

Joint Employment and 
Appeals Committee 
Terms of Reference 

Monitoring Officer Standards Committee 
19th September 2019 

Questions and Motions 
to Council (limitations) 

Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 

Standards Committee 
19th September 2019 

Contract Procedure 
Rules – Contract 
Formalities 

Monitoring Officer Standards Committee 
April 2020 

Delegation Scheme (MO 
Delegations) 

Monitoring Officer Standards Committee 
February 2020 

Review of Employee 
Code of Conduct 

HR and Organisational 
Development  Manager 

JCG 
Standards Committee 
April 2020 

JCG Committee Terms 
of Reference 

HR and Organisational 
Development  Manager 

JCG 
Standards Committee 
April 2020 

Employment Rules HR and Organisational 
Development  Manager 

JCG 
Standards Committee 
April 2020 

Exempt Session Rules 
 

Governance Manager Standards Committee  
February 2020 

Spending of Reserves by 
Cabinet 
 

Monitoring Officer and 
S11 Officer 

Standards Committee  
February 2020 

Motions Processes and 
Deadlines 
 

Monitoring Officer Standards Committee  
February 2020 

Discharge of Executive 
Decisions 

Monitoring Officer / Legal 
Team 

Standards Committee  
April 2020 

Terms of Reference for 
newly established 
Boards 

Monitoring Officer / 
Governance Manager 

Standards Committee  
April 2020 

Independent Persons 
Terms of Office 

Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 

Standards Committee  
April 2020 

Scrutiny Arrangements 
 

Monitoring Officer / 
Scrutiny Officer 

Standards Committee  
April 2020 

Final report and any 
remaining issues for the 
year. 

Governance Manager Standards Committee 
April 2020 
 

Minor wording changes 
or updating of job titles 
(housekeeping) 

Governance Officers Once final draft version 
produced 

Page 19



3 
 

 
1.5 The highlighted review areas in the above table are detailed in Appendix 1. This 

sets outs the proposal and rationale and the sections of the Constitution to be 
amended. 

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 To ensure the Council has in place a fit for purpose Constitution which complies 

with English law. 
 
2.2 The rationale for each proposal as part of the review is set out in Appendix 1. 
 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer and SAMT are 

consulted at various stages of the Constitution Review.  
 
3.2 Equality Impact Assessments may be carried out in relation to specific areas of 

review where the need arises. Details of any equality issues will be address in 
relation to each area of review. 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Members may consider alternative options to any proposals put forward, where 

legally permitted. 
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 Failure to ensure the Constitution meets legal requirements can leave the Council 

open to challenge, as does failure to comply with the provisions of the Constitution. 
It is therefore essential that Constitution is regularly reviewed and given robust 
oversight.  

 
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 The Council is required under the Localism Act 2011 to prepare and keep up-to-

date a constitution that contains its standing orders, code of conduct, such other 
information that the Secretary of State may direct and such other information that 
the authority considers appropriate. 

 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1 There are no human resources implications arising from the proposals within this 

report. Some areas for review may impact on staff. These implications will be 
addressed in relation to the specific areas for review.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



4 
 

6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That the Committee give consideration to proposals for review in Appendix 1 and 

support the submission of the proposals to Council as part of the Constitution 
Review in May 2020. 

 
 
7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which 
has a significant impact on two or more District 
wards or which results in income or 
expenditure to the Council above the following 
thresholds:               

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

Has the portfolio holder been informed 
 

Yes 

District Wards Affected 
 

None 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or Policy 
Framework 
 

Demonstrating good 
governance  

 
8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Areas for Review – Proposals and Rationale: 
 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on 
to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section 
below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must 
provide copies of the background papers) 

None. 

Report Author Contact Number 

Nicola Calver, Governance Manager 
 

01246 217753 
 

 
AGIN 5(a) (STANDS 0919) 2019 – Review of the Constitution  

Page 21



5 
 

APPENDIX 1 

Area of Review 

 

Proposal and Rationale 

 

Sections of the Constitution to be 

revised 

(a) Delegation Scheme 
authority to implement 
legal changes. 

 

From time to time, there are changes in legislation, 

government guidance or other regulatory changes that impact 

on Council policies. Currently, all such changes must be 

brought to Cabinet or Council for approval (depending on the 

nature of the policy) even though in the vast majority of these 

cases, there is no discretion for Members and the 

amendments must be accepted. 

This can prove difficult where changes must be implemented 

within a short timescale and cannot practically be reported to 

Members in time. It is therefore proposed that the power to 

make amendments to policies be delegated to Directors and 

Heads of Services in the Delegation Scheme.  

Where there is any discretionary element to the changes or 

the impact of the changes in legislation etc. are significant, 

these can still be reported to Members.  

The proposed wording of the delegation is: 

To make amendments to Council policy, subject to 

consultation with the Monitoring Officer, in order to: 

i) reflect changes in the law, government or 
regulators’ guidance, and other Council 
policies;  or  

ii) correct obvious, technical or clerical errors and to 
take account of changes of any names or titles. 

Part 3 – Functions Scheme 

Scheme of Delegation to Officers 

9. General powers delegated to all 

Strategic Directors and Heads of 

Service - page 83 of the current 

version. 

 

 

 

P
age 22



6 
 

(b) Time limits for Questions 
and Motions to Council. 

 

Currently, the deadline for all of these is midday 7 clear 

working days before the day of the meeting.  This gives 

very little preparation time for those who have to answer 

the questions or those who want to participate in the 

motion debate. 

Accordingly it is being suggested that the deadline is 

extended.  The suggestions is that the deadline could be 

extended by either 5 working days or 10 working days.  

This would operate as follows in terms of the February, 

March and April Council meetings:- 

17 clear days 22/1/20 5/2/20 23/3/20 

12 clear days 29/1/20 12/2/20 30/2/20 

Current 

deadline of 7 

clear days. 

5/2/20 19/2/20 6/4/20 

Agenda 

Despatch 

7/2/20 21/2/20 8/4/20 

Council Meeting 17/2/20 2/3/20 20/4/20* 

*Affected by Easter 

The table shows what extending the deadline by 5 and 10 

clear days does to timescales.  This would be 

accompanied by a change requiring the distribution of 

questions and motions to members to occur immediately 

after the deadline for submission. 

If Members wish to change the 

deadlines this would mean an alteration 

9.3 and 10.1 of the Council Procedure 

Rules (CPR) and the addition of the 

following:- 

9.3 (c) details of questions submitted by 

Councillors on notice will be circulated 

to Cabinet immediately after the 

deadline has passed. 

And add to the end of 10.1 :- 

Details of motions submitted by 

Councillors on notice will be circulated 

to the Cabinet immediately after the 

deadline has passed. 

P
age 23



7 
 

(c) Access to Information – 
Member attendance 
during exempt items of 
Cabinet  

The Council Procedure Rules make provision, at rule 25.3 for 

Members who are not appointed to the relevant Committee or 

Sub-Committee to remain in a meeting of that Committee or 

Sub-Committee during the private session considering 

exempt items, unless the Committee or Sub-Committee ask 

them to leave.  

This rule has in practice been applied to Executive, although 

technically this is not a Committee. It is therefore proposed in 

the interests of clarity, that the term Cabinet be added to the 

wording of this rule. 

Part four – Council Procedure Rules, 

Section 4.3  

(d) Reserves – approval of 
Transformation Reserve 

At the present time there is a specific delegation to the 

Section 151 Officer to approve expenditure form this 

Reserve.  This was agreed so that expenditure from the 

Reserve could be properly monitored and recorded but 

also so that relatively minor expenditure as part of the 

Transformation Programme would not be delayed by the 

need for a formal Cabinet decision. 

However it is not necessary for the delegatee to be the 

Section 151 Officer.  The Section 151 Officer needs to be 

aware of expenditure from this Reserve and we need to 

make sure the system so informs her.  However the actual 

decisions come through the governance structure set up to 

deal with Transformation Programme projects.  It would be 

the Transformation Governance Group (TGG) (which 

includes Members) that would decide to progress a project 

not the Section 151 Officer. 

 

Delegation Scheme – 12 Head of 

Finance and Resources and Section 

151 Officer number 12.10. 

This delegation to move to the Director 

of People. 

Delegated Decisions relating to Invest 

to Save Projects to be initialled by the 

Section 151 Officer to evidence that she 

has seen them. 

The Budget and Policy Framework 

Rules number 5(b) needs amending to 

refer to the Director of People. 

P
age 24



8 
 

This can be achieved by amending the delegation and 

transferring the delegation to the Director of People with 

an additional requirement that the Section 151 Officer not 

only has to see the proposal but initials the Delegated 

Decision form (DD form) to evidence that she has been 

consulted. 

(d) Reserves – approval of 

expenditure from Reserves 

It has always been the case that expenditure from 

Reserves are agreed by the Cabinet in a formal decision.  

This used to be in the Constitution but for some reason 

was removed.   

There needs to be a decision route for expenditure from 

the Reserves – for openness and transparency reasons.  It 

is suggested therefore that this is put back into the 

Constitution to make the position clear. 

 

Cabinet functions in Part 3 of the 

Constitution includes at point (g) in year 

decisions.  This could be amended as 

follows, with changes being shown in 

bold:- 

(g) Take in-year decisions on resources 

or priorities including the use of 

reserves together with other 

stakeholders and partners in the local 

community, to deliver and implement 

the Policy and Budget Framework 

(d)Small increases in 
expenditure and effect on 
the Council’s Budget  

From time to time changes are made to the way services 

are provided to make them better.  Sometimes this has no 

cost.  If the cost is significant, then a report is taken to 

Cabinet.  Sometimes, however, the cost increase is very 

small.  As the rules stand at the moment, even a small 

increase in budget requires formal member approval 

through Cabinet.  So Cabinet could be considering a report 

that involves a very small increase.   

 

Delegation Scheme – 12  

New 12.12  

To authorise small increases in 

individual budgets of up to £10,000 per 

budget on one occasion in any 

corporate year subject to a delegated 

decision notice being produced.   

P
age 25



9 
 

 

It is felt that these decisions would be better done by a 

Delegated Decision (a DD).  This would ensure 

transparency (a formal decision is recorded) whilst still 

involving members (the Leader and/or Deputy Leader 

and/or Portfolio Holder have to be consulted in every 

delegated decision but give a faster route and avoiding 

Cabinet dealing with minor increases.   

Clearly the Section 151 Officer needs to be able to 

exercise control over this and stop costs spiralling out of 

control.  It is therefore suggested that a new delegation is 

given to the Section 151 Officer to cover small increases in 

budgets.   

Council Procedure Rules  

Rule 8 Questions by the 

public  

 

A review of our neighbouring authorities has shown that they 

all allow any member of the public to ask questions at council 

so long as they meet the scope.  

Bolsover District Council restricts whom may ask questions 

as “Members of the public who are on the Register of 

Electors for or who are Non Domestic Rate Payers to the 

district”.  

Concern was raised that some whom have a connection to 

the district may not qualify to ask a question under this 

current regime and consideration was given to whether this 

should be extended to include those who have a “Local 

Connection” to the district.  

Part 4 Council Procedure Rules  

8 – Questions by the Public  

8.1 General - page 103 of the current 

version. 

P
age 26



10 
 

 

For the purposes of Housing the Housing Act 1996 defines 

that a person has a local connection to a district if  

1. (a) they are, or were in the past, normally 
resident there, and that residence was of their own 
choice; or, 

2. (b) they are employed there; or, 
3. (c) they have family associations living there; or, 
4. (d) of any special circumstances. 

 

The committee could accept that anyone can ask a question 

as the current scope limits this to a matter which is one the 

Council “has a responsibility or which affects the district.” This 

restriction would ensure that whomever asked a question 

could only do so if it genuinely affected the district.  

The proposed wording of the amended rule 8.1 (a) is  

Members of the public who are on the Register of 

Electors for North East Derbyshire District Council, or 

who are Non Domestic Rate Payers to District, may ask 

questions of members of the Cabinet at ordinary 

meetings of the Council.  

 

 

 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 

P
age 27



 

 

5. Standards Committee 
 
There will be a Standards Committee of 11 members comprising:- 

 
(i) Nine Councillors  

 
(ii) Two non-voting Parish Members elected by the District’s parish and town 

councils 
 
(iii) One Co-Opted Member 
 
The committee will be politically balanced. 
 
Independent Persons 
 
The Council will appoint two Independent Persons who will be consulted by the 
authority before it makes a finding as to whether a member or co-opted member has 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or decides on action to be taken in respect 
of that member.   
 
They may also be consulted by the Authority in respect of a standards complaint at 
any other stage and by a member or co-opted member of the District Council or of a 
parish or town council against whom a complaint has been made. 
 
The functions of the Standards Committee include: 
 

 Advising the Council on the adoption of or revision to the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

 

 Monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct and promotion of high 
standards of conduct by Members and co-opted Members of the Council. 

 

 Oversee Member Training, (including the attendance of Members at courses), in 
relation to matters affecting their conduct and probity including relevant 
information provided to newly elected District Councillors. 

 

 Promote and maintain high standards of conduct within town/parish councils and 
to assist them in following their own Codes of Conduct or adopt the North East 
Code of Conduct. 

 

 Oversee training provided to Parish Councils on conduct and probity matters 
including relevant information provided to newly elected Parish Councillors 

 

 Oversee the public face of the Standards Committee through the website and 
increase public awareness of the Code of Conduct and its application. 
 

 Granting dispensations to allow Councillors and co-opted members to take part 
in meetings where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 28



 

 

 Receiving regular reports from the Monitoring Officer on the number of 
complaints against members, how they are progressing, what decisions have 
been made and what action taken. 

 

 Through the Hearings Sub-Committee, undertaking hearings into complaints 
which have been investigated and deciding on sanctions where a breach of the 
Members' Code of Conduct has been found. 

 

 Oversee matters referred to the Monitoring Officer in relation to complaints 
against Town and Parish Councillors where it is inappropriate for the Monitoring 
Officer to take a decision. 

 

 Overseeing the whistle blowing policy. 
 

 Overseeing complaints handling and outcomes of Ombudsman investigations. 
 

 Review Members’ attendance at meetings on a bi-annual basis. 
 

 Receiving annual reports on gifts and hospitality received by Council members 
and officers. 

 

 Receiving annual reports on the Council’s operation and use of the powers under 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and to approve amendments to 
the policy as necessary.   

 

 Receive reports of the Independent Remuneration Panel prior to Council 
submission. 

 

 Undertaking an annual review of the Council's Constitution, making 
recommendations to the Council meeting. 

 

 Provide an annual written report to Council on the work of the Committee 
 
 

Page 29



1 
 

Agenda Item No 5(b)  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council  
 

Standards   
 

19 September 2019 
 

 
Review of Part 4 of the Constitution – Council Procedure Rules  

Questions and Motions 
 

 
Report of the Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 

This report is public  
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

 To consider whether there should be any changes to Part 4 of the Constitution - 
Council Procedure Rules. 
 

1 Report Details 
 

1.1 Part 4 of the Constitution details procedural rules in relation to Council and Council 
Committees. This report look specifically at Rule 8 Questions by the public, Rule 9 
Questions by Councillors and Rule 10, Motions on notice. These rules are attached 
as Appendix 1.  
 

1.2 The main issues to consider with regards to these rules revolves around the 
number of questions and motions which are allowed and the overall time for 
consideration of questions and motions. In addition, whether they should be dealt 
with in the order of receipt, to assess the provision for urgency and to be satisfied 
that the scope and reasons for rejection are fit for purpose.  
 

1.3 In order to consider whether there is a need for any change and to consider what 
practice neighbouring authorities adopt, a comparison of 5 neighbouring authorities 
was conducted with regards to each of these Rules.  

 
Questions by the Public  

 
1.4 Table 1, at Appendix 2 shows a comparison as to how the Council and 

neighbouring authorities govern questions by public to the Council.  
 

1.5 The main difference is that North East Derbyshire District Council restricts whom 
may ask questions as “Members of the public who are on the Register of Electors 
for or who are not Domestic Rate Payers to the district”. All the neighbouring 
authorities considered allowed any member of the public to ask questions. 
 

1.6 Standards Committee may which to consider amending the rule so as to allow any 
member or the public to ask a question so long as it meets the scope. 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5b



2 
 

1.7 The other main difference is the amount of overall time allowed for public questions. 
North East, Bolsover and Bassetlaw Councils allow a total of 15 minutes unless an 
extension of time is approved by Council. The other authorities allow for 30 minutes 
in total.  
 

1.8 Standards Committee may wish to consider amending Rule 8 in order to extend the 
time allowed for questions to 30 minutes. It may be that as the Chair has the ability 
to agree to an extension of time, this is considered sufficient to ensure adequate 
time is given for questions. The issue of time is only likely to be an issue where 
there are a number questions by the public on the council agenda. 
 

1.9 All authorities save for Chesterfield Borough Council provide a scope of questions 
which also sets out on what basis a question may be rejected. The Authorities are 
consistent in the reasons for rejecting a question e.g.  

o is not about a matter for which the local authority has a responsibility or 
which affects the district; 

o is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
o is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of 

the Council in the past six months; or 
o Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information; 
o Relates to a planning application that is in the process of being determined 

by the District Council.  
 
1.10 Ashfield District Council also allows for questions to be rejected where they relate to 

an ongoing complaint being dealt with either by Council or the Local Government 
Ombudsman.  Mansfield District Council limits the scope if it does not comply with 
the general principle of holding a member of the Council to account for their actions.   
 
Questions on notice by Councillors  

1.11 Table 2, at Appendix 2 shows a comparison as to how the Council and 
neighbouring authorities govern questions by on notice by Councillors.  
 

1.12 Questions on notice by both members of the public and councillors must be 
provided 7 clear days prior to the meeting and will be heard in the order received. 
The issue for consideration of Standards Committee would be whether the scope 
for questions for members of the public should be replicated to apply to questions 
on notice by Councillors.  
 
Motions on Notice  
 

1.13 Table 3 at Appendix 2 shows a comparison as to how the Council and neighbouring 
authorities govern motions on notice.  
 

1.14 North East Derbyshire District Council, like all the neighbouring authorities set out a 
scope for motions and reasons for refusal, which are generally consistent. 

 
1.15 Ashfield District Council and Chesterfield Borough Council both expressly state that 

“any motion which is the responsibility of the Cabinet, Committee or Sub-committee, 
upon being moved and seconded shall stand referred to Cabinet, Committee or 
Sub-committee without debate.”  

 

Page 31



3 
 

1.16 All Authorities require that motions be given at least 7 days’ notice. Ashfield District 
Council also allow for the Chair of the Council to consider a motion as a matter of 
urgency. 

 
1.17 One authority sets a time limit for motions on notice of 60 minutes, the rest remain 

silent as to the time limit. The same authority also states that only one motion is to 
be considered per meeting  

 
2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1  To ensure the Council has in place a fit for purpose Constitution which complies 

with English law and reflects best practice.  
 
3 Consultation and Equality Impact 
 
3.1 The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer and SAMT are 

consulted at various stages of the Constitution Review.  
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1  Members may consider alternative options to any proposals put forward, where 

legally permitted. 
 
5 Implications 
 
5.1 Finance and Risk Implications 
 
5.1.1 Failure to ensure the Constitution meets legal requirements can leave the Council 

open to challenge, as does failure to comply with the provisions of the Constitution. 
It is therefore essential that Constitution is regularly reviewed and given robust 
oversight.  

  
5.2 Legal Implications including Data Protection 
 
5.2.1 The Council is required under the Localism Act 2011 to prepare and keep up-to-

date a constitution that contains its standing orders, code of conduct, such other 
information that the Secretary of State may direct and such other information that 
the authority considers appropriate. 

 
5.3 Human Resources Implications 
 
5.3.1 None  
 
6 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That Committee consider whether there should be any changes to Part 4 of the 

Constitution - Council Procedure Rule 8 as follows;  
o To allow any member or the public to ask a question so long as it meets the 

scope. 
o To extend the time allowed for questions by the public to 30 minutes 
o To amend the scope for questions so as to allow questions to be rejected 

where they relate to either an ongoing complaint being dealt with either by 

Page 32



4 
 

Council or the Local Government Ombudsman or where they do not comply 
with the general principle of holding a member of the council to account for 
their actions.   

 
6.2  That Committee consider whether there should be any changes to Part 4 of the 

Constitution - Council Procedure Rule 9 which would allow the scope for questions 
for members of the public to apply to questions on notice by councillors.  
 

6.3  That Committee consider whether there should be any changes to Part 4 of the 
Constitution - Council Procedure Rule 10 as follows; 

o To allow any motion which is the responsibility of the Cabinet, Committee or 
Sub-committee, upon being moved and seconded shall stand referred to 
Cabinet, Committee or Sub-committee without debate. 

o To set a limit on the number of motions or the time limit for consideration of 
motions.  

 
7 Decision Information 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:             

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 

District Wards Affected 
 

All  

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



5 
 

8 Document Information 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2.  
 

Council Procedure Rules, 8, 9 and 10  
Comparison Tables  

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

None 
 
 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

V Dawson -  
 

2231 

 
 

AGIN 5(b) (STANDARDS 0919) 2019 – Questions & Motions  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



6 
 

Appendix 1 – Council  Procedure Rules 8, 9 and 10.  

8. Questions by the Public 
 
8.1 General.  
 

(a) Members of the public, who are on the Register of Electors for North East 
Derbyshire District or who are Non-Domestic Rate Payers to the District, may 
ask questions of members of the Cabinet at ordinary meetings of the Council. 

 
(b)  Time allowed for questions and answers shall not, without the consent of the 

Council, exceed 15 minutes, or in the case of one questioner, 5 minutes. 
 
(c)  Questions and responses shall not be a matter of debate. 

 
8.2 Notice of Questions.  
 

A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it in writing or 
by electronic mail to the Monitoring Officer no later than midday seven clear working 
days before the day of the meeting.  Each question must give the name and 
address of the questioner and must name the Member of the Council to whom it is 
to be put. 

 
 
 
8.3 Number of Questions.  
 

At any one meeting no person may submit more than one question and no more 
than one question may be asked on behalf of any one organisation. 

 
8.4 Scope of Questions.   
 

The Monitoring Officer may reject a question if: 
 

(a) it is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which 
affects the district; 

 
(b) it is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
 
(c) it is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of 

the Council in the past six months; 
 
(d) it requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information; 
 
(e) it breaches any procedure rule; 
 
(f) it relates to an item on the agenda for that Council meeting; or 
 
(g) it relates to a planning application that is in the process of being determined by 

the District Council. 
 

Page 35



7 
 

 If a question is rejected the person who submitted it will be notified in writing before 
the meeting and given the reasons for the rejection. 

 
8.5 Record of Questions.  
 

The Monitoring Officer will enter each question in a book open to public inspection 
and will immediately send a copy of the question to the member to whom it is to be 
put.  Rejected questions will include reasons for rejection.  Copies of all questions 
will be circulated to all members and will be made available to the public attending 
the meeting. 
 

8.6 Order of Questions.  
 
Questions will be asked in the order of which notice of them was received, except 
that the Chairman of the Council may group together similar questions. 
 

8.7 Asking the Question at the Meeting. 
 

The Chairman of the Council will invite the questioner to put the question to the 
member named in the notice.  If a questioner who has submitted a written question 
is unable to be present, the question will not be dealt with. 
 

8.8 Supplementary Question.  
 

A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one brief 
supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied to his or her 
original question.  A supplementary question must arise directly out of the original 
request or reply.  The Chairman of the Council may reject a supplementary question 
on any of the grounds in rule 8.5 above or if the question takes the form of a 
speech. 

 
8.9 Response 
 

An answer may take the form of: 
 
(a) a direct oral answer 
 
(b) where the desired information is in a council publication or another published 

work, a reference to that publication; or 
 
(c) a written answer circulated later to the questioner. 

 
8.10 Reference of Question to the Cabinet or a Committee.  
 

Unless the Chairman of the Council decides otherwise, no discussion will take place 
on any question, but any Councillor may move that the matter raised by a question 
be referred to the Cabinet or the appropriate board or Committee.  Once seconded, 
such a motion will be voted on without discussion. 

 
9. Questions By Councillors 
 
9.1 On Reports of the Cabinet or Committee.  

Page 36



8 
 

 
A Councillor may ask the Leader, the Chairman of the Council or a Committee 
Chairman questions without notice about an item in a report of the Cabinet or of that 
Committee when it is being considered. 

 
9.2 Questions on Notice at Council Meetings.  
 

Subject to rule 9.3, a Councillor may ask the Chairman of the Council, the Leader, 
any Cabinet Members or the Chairman any Committee a question about any matter 
in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the District. 

 
9.3 Notice of Questions.  
 

A Councillor may only ask a question under Rule 9.2 if either: 
 

(a) submitted the question in writing to the question to the Monitoring Officer no 
later than midday seven clear working days before the day of the meeting; or 

 
(b) the question relates to urgent matters, they have the consent of the Councillor 

to whom the question is to be put and the content of the question is given to 
the Monitoring Officer by 9 am on the day of the meeting. 

 
 
9.4 Response.   
 

An answer may take the form of: 
 

(a) a direct oral answer; 
 
(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 

published work, a reference to that publication; or 
 
(c) a written answer circulated to the questioner. 

 
9.5 Supplementary Question.  
 

A Councillor asking a question under Rule 9.2 may ask one supplementary question 
without notice.  A supplementary question must arise directly out of the original 
question or reply. 

 
9.6 Number of Questions.   
 

Questions on notice are limited to one per Councillor per meeting, plus one 
supplementary question. 

 
9.7 Time for Questions.   
 

There will be an overall time limit of fifteen minutes on Councillors' questions with 
no extension of time and questions not dealt with in this time will be dealt with by 
written response. 

 
 

Page 37



9 
 

9.8 Format of Questions.   
 

Councillors must confine their contributions to questions and answers and not make 
statements or attempt to debate.  The Chairman of the Council will decide whether 
a Councillor is contravening this rule and stop the Councillor concerned.  The 
Chairman of the Council’s ruling will be final. 

 
10. Motions - on Notice 
 
10.1 Notice.   
 

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 11, written notice 
of every motion, signed by at least one Councillor, must be delivered to the 
Monitoring Officer not later than midday on the day seven clear working days before 
the date of the meeting.  These will be entered in a book open to inspection by the 
public. 

 
10.2 Scope.   
 

Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or which 
affect the area.  The Chairman of the Council may, on the advice of the Chief 
Executive Officer, refuse a motion which is illegal, scurrilous, improper or out of 
order. 
 

10.3 Motions Set Out in the Agenda.   
 

Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the order in 
which notice was received, unless the Councillor giving notice states, in writing, that 
they propose to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it. 

Page 38



10 
 

Appendix 2 - Table 1 - Questions by public  

Council  Who can ask  About what  To whom  Deadline No of 

questions  

Order of 

Questions  

Time allowed 

North East 

Derbyshire 

District 

Council  

Members of 

the public who 

are on the 

Register of 

Electors for 

North East or 

who are Non 

Domestic Rate 

Payers 

A matter for 

which the 

council has a 

responsibility 

or which 

affects the 

district  

Members of 

Cabinet   

By midday 

7 clear 

days before 

meeting 

One and 

supplemental  

In the Order 

received  

15 mins total, 5 mins if 

one question ( unless 

consent of the Council)  

Bolsover 

District 

Council 

Members of 

the public who 

are on the 

Register of 

Electors for 

Bolsover or 

who are Non 

Domestic Rate 

Payers 

A matter for 

which the 

council has a 

responsibility 

or which 

affects the 

district 

Members of 

Executive   

 

By midday 

7 clear 

days before 

meeting 

One and 

Supplemental  

In the Order 

Received  

15 mins total, 5 mins if 

one question ( unless 

consent of the Council) 

Chesterfield 

Borough 

Council  

Any member 

of the public 

 

 

Relate to the 

powers and 

duties of the 

council or 

affect the 

borough in 

some way.  

To 

appropriate 

members  

of the 

Council  

5 working 

days before 

meeting 

One and 

supplemental  

Doesn’t 

specify  

30 mins  

P
age 39



11 
 

Mansfield 

District 

Council  

Any member 

of the public  

Something the 

local authority 

has a 

responsibility 

for or which 

affects the 

district  

The Elected 

Mayor, 

executive, 

Chairman 

of a 

Committee 

of any 

member of 

the Council  

By midday 

7 days 

before 

meeting  

Can submit 

more than one 

question ( but 

will only be 

allowed after 

dealing with 

other first 

question from 

other person 

and if 30 mins 

remains) 

In the order 

received 

30 mins in total, 5 min 

per question and 

supplementary  

Ashfield 

District 

Council  

Any member 

of the public 

 

Something the 

local authority 

has a 

responsibility 

for or which 

affects the 

district 

Members of 

Cabinet, 

the leader 

and a Chair 

of any 

Committee 

or Sub 

Committee  

6 clear 

days before 

meeting  

2 questions 

per person or 

organisation 

Max 4 

questions per 

year by same 

person  

In the order 

received  

30 mins in total  

Bassetlaw 

District 

Council  

Members of 

the public  

Something the 

local authority 

has a 

responsibility 

for or which 

affects the 

district 

Members of 

Cabinet, 

chairmen of 

the Councils 

Committees 

and other 

Standing 

bodies 

Noon, 7 

clear 

working 

days before 

the day of 

the meeting 

2 questions Order 

determined 

by Chief Exec 

and 

Monitoring 

Officer  

No question or answer 

may exceed 5 minutes 

without the permission 

of the Chairman and the 

totality of questions and 

answers may not extend 

beyond 15 mins 

 

 

P
age 40



12 
 

 

Table 2 - Questions on notice to members 

Council  About What  To whom  Deadline No of 

questions  

Order of 

Questions  

Time allowed 

North East 

Derbyshire 

District 

Council   

Any power or 

duties which 

affect the 

district 

Chair of the 

Council, the 

leader, Cabinet 

members or 

Chair of 

Committees 

 

By midday 7 clear 

days before meeting 

Urgent matters with 

the consent of the 

councillor answering 

the question by 9am 

day of meeting  

One and 

supplemental  

N/A 15 mins total, 5 mins if one 

question  no extension of 

time  

Bolsover 

District 

Council   

Any power or 

duties which 

affect the 

district 

Chair of the 

Council, the 

leader, 

Executive 

members or 

Chair of 

Committees 

 

By midday 7 clear 

days before meeting 

Urgent matters with 

the consent of the 

councillor answering 

the question by 9am 

day of meeting 

One and 

supplemental 

N/A 15 mins total, 5 mins if one 

question  no extension of 

time 

Chesterfield 

Borough 

Council   

Any power or 

duties of the 

council or 

which affects 

the borough in 

some way 

Set rules for 

leader, but can 

ask Mayor or 

an cabinet 

member 

 

 

3 working days  One and 

supplemental  

N/A 30 mins 

P
age 41



13 
 

Mansfield 

District 

Council   

Any matter in 

relation o 

which the 

Council has 

powers or 

duties or which 

affects the 

District 

Chairman, 

member of 

executive, 

chairman of 

any 

committee/sub-

committee  

 

7 working days  

Urgent matters with 

the consent of the 

chairman and 

Monitoring officer by 

10am day of 

meeting 

One and 

Supplemental  

N/A No time limit 

Ashfield 

District 

Council   

Must be about 

matters for 

which the 

council has a 

responsibility 

or which affect 

the district 

Chairman, 

Cabinet 

Portfolio 

Holder or 

Chairman of 

any 

committee/sub-

committee 

 

7 clear days  

 

Urgent matters with 

the consent of the 

member to whom 

the question is 

directed if by 10am 

on day of meeting  

One and 

supplemental  

N/A No time limit 

Bassetlaw 

District 

Council   

powers or 

duties or which 

affects the 

district. 

Chairman, 

Leader, 

member of 

Cabinet 

Chairman of 

any committee 

or sub-

committee or 

standing body 

7 days clear days  

Urgent matters with 

the consent of the 

Chairman and the 

person to whom the 

question is directed 

if by 5pm on day of 

meeting 

One and 

Supplemental  

Chair will 

determine 

order  

30 mins, unless chair agrees 

an extension  

 

 

P
age 42



14 
 

Table 3 - Motions on notice  

Council  Submitted 

by  

About what  Reasons for 

refusal  

Deadline No of 

question

s  

Order  Time allowed 

North East 

Derbyshire 

District 

Council   

Signed by 

at least 1 

Councillor  

 

Matter for which 

the Council has a 

responsibility or 

which affects the 

area.  

Illegal, scurrilous, 
improper, out of 
order  

By midday 7 

clear days 

before meeting 

 Heard in the 

order 

received  

N/A 

Bolsover 

District 

Council 

Signed by 

at least 1 

Councillor  

 

Matter for which 

the Council has a 

responsibility or 

which affects the 

area. 

Illegal, scurrilous, 
improper, out of 
order 

By midday 7 

clear days 

before meeting 

 Heard in the 

order 

received  

N/A 

Chesterfield 

Borough 

Council   

Signed by 

the 

member 

submitting 

them 

Relate to the 

councils Powers 

and duties or 

affect the borough  

Illegal, irregular or 

Improper  

Not less than 

midday on the 

8th working day 

before the 

meeting  

No more 

than one 

notice of 

motion 

Considered 

in the order 

received  

60 mins – if not 

dealt with by 

this time, 

immediately put 

to the vote 

without further 

debate or 

amendment  

Mansfield 

District 

Council   

Must be 

signed by 3 

members 

 

Matter for which 

the council has a 

responsibility for 

which affects 

Mansfield district  

Defamatory, 

frivolous or 

offensive  

Substantially the 

same as a motion 

debated by council 

By noon 7 clear 

days before the 

meeting 

 N/A N/A 

P
age 43



15 
 

in the past 6 

months 

May lead to the 

discourse of 

confidential of 

exempt 

information.   

Ashfield 

District 

Council  

Must be 

signed by 2 

members  

 

Matters for which 

the council has a 

responsibility of 

which affect the 

district  

Defamatory, 

frivolous or 

offensive  

Substantially the 

same as a motion 

debated by council 

in the past 6 

months 

May lead to the 

discourse of 

confidential of 

exempt 

information.   

By noon 7 clear 

days before the 

meeting, 

provision for 

urgent 

No 

restrictio

n  

N/A N/A 

Bassetlaw 

District 

Council  

Must be 

signed by 2 

members  

 

Matters for which 

the Council has a 

responsibility or 

which affect the 

district 

Improper, out of 

order  

7 clear days  Considered 

in the order 

received  

N/A 

 

P
age 44



Page 45

Agenda Item 5c



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



1 
 

NEDDC STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

Meeting date Item Comments 

 
11 July 2019  

 
Standards Committee Annual Report   
Review of Standards Committee Terms of Reference 
Complaints Update  
NEDDC Website – Content Review  
Work Programme 

 
 

 
19 September 2019 
 

 
Review of Constitution – Part 1 
Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 
Complaints Update  
Work Programme  

 
 
 

 
21 November 2019 
 
 
 

 
RIPA Policy Annual Review – Part 2  
Review of Constitution – Part 2  
Complaints Update  
Work Programme  

 
 

 
6 February 2020 

 
Gifts and Hospitality Review 2019 
Joint Whistleblowing Policy Annual Report 
Review of Constitution – Part 3  
Appointments to Outside Bodies 
Complaints Update 
Work Programme  

 
 
 
 
 

 
23 April 2020  

 
Review of Constitution – Part 4  
Complaints Update  
Work Programme 2019/20 – Achievements  
Work Programme 2020/21  

 

 
STANDARDS WORK PROGRAMME  2019-20 
 

 
A

g
e

n
d

a
 Ite

m
 N

o
 5

(e
) 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 5e


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	4 Report of the Joint Head of Partnerships and Transformation
	App 1 to AGIN 4
	App 2 to AGIN 4
	App 3 to AGIN 4

	5a Review of the Council's Constitution
	App 2 to AGIN 5(a)

	5b Questions and Motions to Council
	5c Flintshire County Council - Update to the Code of Conduct
	5e Work Programme

